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          1  ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: We will do the

          3  final agency for today's hearings. These are run by

          4  the Finance Committee rules so in a moment you can

          5  begin, Commissioner.

          6                 We will make an effort to recommend

          7  next year that all of the agencies that appear

          8  before us be grouped in such a way as to leave HRA

          9  for last, despite all of the good intentions it is

         10  always the most difficult hearing and takes the

         11  longest to conduct. We did Human Rights and DHS

         12  fairly quickly, and I anticipate a fairly quick

         13  hearing with ACS, so maybe we will rearrange it next

         14  time.

         15                 Welcome, Commissioner.

         16                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Again, good

         17  afternoon.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: You can begin.

         19                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chairman, and members of the Committee. On March

         21  15th I appeared before the Committee and testified

         22  regarding our preliminary budget for Fiscal Year

         23  2000, so without reiterating that testimony today, I

         24  would like to focus on the changes proposed by the

         25  Executive Budget, but for completeness of the record
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          2  we have offered a copy of the written statement from

          3  March 15th, and of course a copy of my written

          4  statement for today.

          5                 Our position is that since the

          6  creation of ACS, the Mayor has consistently provided

          7  the agency with the resources it needs to do a long

          8  term reform and enhance the provisions of child

          9  welfare services in the City.

         10                 Illustrating that continued

         11  commitment, ACS' budget is being increased, gross

         12  numbers after the match up by 148.7 million dollars.

         13  This brings the agency's overall budget to an

         14  unprecedented $2.1 billion in Fiscal Year 2000, that

         15  is made up of $621.3 million in City tax levy,

         16  $498.9 in state funds, and $968.6 million in federal

         17  funds. As I am sure you recall, the Preliminary

         18  Budget for Fiscal Year 2000 proposed reductions of

         19  some non-mandated preventive service programs that

         20  ACS has expanded primarily or wholly by using City

         21  tax levy dollars and in some instances with a lot of

         22  help from this Committee and this Council. The

         23  Executive Budget restores these reductions, and if

         24  you recall my testimony, I think you will recall

         25  that ACS was very much in support of those programs.
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          2                 Also, increase in the budget for

          3  adoption subsidies, foster parent stipends, a very

          4  important addition, staff hiring and training,

          5  institutional schools, cost of living adjustments

          6  for our contract agency staff, our vendors, and

          7  funding to upgrade facilities in our congregate care

          8  units.

          9                 Home-making is a very important

         10  restoration, it restores 18.2 million to home-making

         11  services, the restoration increases the total budget

         12  now, brings it to 27.4 million for the Year 2000 and

         13  by June we project this will allow us to serve 1,389

         14  families.

         15                 Beacon school prevention program,

         16  again there is a restoration, 4.3 million, to

         17  maintain funding for the beacon school programs. You

         18  know those programs very well, you have been very

         19  supportive of them. Through our contract with the

         20  Department of Youth and Community Development, 16

         21  beacon schools, include an ACS monitor, preventive

         22  service component that complies with child welfare

         23  requirements and standards. And we are especially

         24  pleased with this because it is really a totally

         25  consistent, a program totally consistent with our
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          2  concept of neighborhood-based services as

          3  articulated in the reform plan and as you know,

          4  which we have moved through the RFP stage for the

          5  Bronx and released an RFP for the entire City a

          6  month or more ago.

          7                 Adoption subsidy program supports and

          8  assists families after children are adopted. As of

          9  February 1999, we are providing adoption subsidies

         10  in 15,931 cases, supporting adoptions of over 29,000

         11  children. Inevitably I am assuming the

         12  implementation of ASFA will increase the number of

         13  adoptions since it shortens the time frame to reach

         14  permanency. I am also hopeful it will increase the

         15  number of reunifications and make them more speedy,

         16  so the budget for adoption subsidies has been

         17  increased by 45.9 million, bringing the total budget

         18  to $241 million, subsidizing families who adopt

         19  children. We think this will support adoption

         20  subsidies for over 34,000 children by this coming

         21  June, just a terrific supportive program.

         22                 Foster parent stipends. Currently

         23  foster parents before this new budget goes into

         24  effect are paid a maximum of 86 percent of the

         25  recommended state rate, depending on the age of the
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          2  child and the level of care required.

          3                 In Fiscal Year 2000 ACS will be able

          4  to increase the foster parent stipends to 100

          5  percent of the recommended state rate, the most we

          6  can pay. That will be the first time that that has

          7  happened since I have been in this office.

          8                 As you know, those rates were cut

          9  when the State block grant went into effect and

         10  child welfare experienced the $137 million cut with

         11  the block grant back in 1995.

         12                 The Mayor's addition of $14.3 million

         13  in City tax levy, combined with the state and

         14  federal match, brings the total to 43.2 million.

         15                 With respect to state budget issues,

         16  inevitably I think they will creep into budget

         17  planning in the City, and those centered around

         18  ASFA. I discussed the need in March for supplemental

         19  state funding in light of the City's obligation to

         20  comply with the requirements of the 1997 adoption

         21  and safe families act, or ASFA, for short, and the

         22  corresponding state legislation implementing that

         23  federal tax.

         24                 As we all know, the state delayed

         25  enactment of ASFA legislation beyond the deadline of
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          2  January 1st that didn't go into effect until

          3  February 11th. This has created a couple of

          4  problems. As of now the federal government has not

          5  agreed to reimburse states across the country who

          6  relate in implementing ASFA for what would be the

          7  normal state match, 4E funds, so right now we stand

          8  to lose a great deal of money in federal funding. It

          9  is about 28 million in New York City alone if that

         10  isn't rectified.

         11                 We have asked the State to make us

         12  whole on that, since it was the State that was late.

         13  The State Senate passed a bill in time, the State

         14  Assembly did not, and that has put us in that

         15  position.

         16                 In addition, we have had imposed on

         17  us what really amounts to a non-funded mandate on

         18  all of the counties under ASFA. The State

         19  legislation requires that counties fingerprint and

         20  conduct criminal record checks on all existing and

         21  prospective foster and adoptive parents. That means

         22  that we have to fingerprint about 75,000

         23  individuals. We have about 25,000 foster care homes

         24  serving 39,000 children, assuming an average of

         25  three adults in the home, that we are anticipating
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          2  having to fingerprint 75,000.

          3                 We have talked to the State about

          4  giving us more time to do it, giving us some

          5  financial support, and that is still unresolved, but

          6  it presents a significant budget issue.

          7                 To support ASFA implementation and

          8  compliance, the Mayor's budget and ACS' budget

          9  baselines $4.7 million. $1.1 million of this

         10  appropriation is to provide ASFA training to our own

         11  workers, direct care and contract agency workers,

         12  attorneys and legal staff, on the implementation of

         13  this legislation, really very important legislation

         14  to speak permanency with all of the parts of it that

         15  have stirred little controversy. The overall intent

         16  of the bill is really admirable. The training will

         17  include the creation of a training video, a CD-ROM,

         18  as well as development of other training materials

         19  for all of the people who will be working on

         20  implementing ASFA.

         21                 The remaining 3.6 million, the bulk

         22  of the 4.7 million appropriation, is for expenses

         23  relating to fingerprinting and criminal record

         24  checks requirements of ASFA.

         25                 As you know, funding in the amount of
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          2  about 3 million was included in the Preliminary

          3  January Plan, in addition to hire 47 additional

          4  attorneys at ACS, 13 legal support staff to meet

          5  what we anticipate will be a very considerable

          6  increased workload resulting from the mandates of

          7  ASFA. All the time frames for achieving permanency,

          8  as you know, are dramatically compressed. And it is

          9  great for kids, it means that permanency will be,

         10  decisions will be made much more rapidly, it will be

         11  a big job to implement.

         12                 Professional staff development at

         13  ACS, 7.2 million is added to our budget to support

         14  our new title series for case workers and

         15  supervisors. They will get increased compensation,

         16  but if they have the enhanced hiring requirements,

         17  higher educational requirements, it will also

         18  provide merit increases for exceptional performance

         19  for up to 25 percent of our staff each year. It will

         20  also require graduate school credits, for every

         21  supervisor must have at least 30 graduate school

         22  credits, which is half of an MSW's requirements, we

         23  think that is going to go a long way to increasing

         24  the quality of our staff and we have $7.2 million

         25  for it.
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          2                 The budget also has a million dollars

          3  to increase the ratio of paralegals to attorneys in

          4  the Family Court and litigation units. Twenty-nine

          5  paralegals will be added, so the increased caseloads

          6  and tight time frames required by ASFA can be met.

          7  But overall, ACS attorneys have been always poorly

          8  staffed by administrative support. It is true of all

          9  of the government law offices, I think there is

         10  really no comparison with what happens in private

         11  practice for attorneys. They make their own calls to

         12  get witnesses in, they fill out their own subpoenas,

         13  they worry about all of the detail that a paralegal

         14  could very effectively take care of.

         15                 Supporting contract agencies,

         16  obviously they play a critical role in the child

         17  welfare system. They now take care of about 75

         18  percent of the foster care population.

         19                 We have been focusing on upgrading

         20  contract agencies, providing congregate care

         21  services to improve the quality of services these

         22  agencies supply.

         23                 The budget has $9 million to upgrade

         24  the facilities and to meet the requirements of state

         25  fire safety regulations, which turn out to be more
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          2  rigorous than New York City's fire code which is

          3  probably one of the most rigorous in the country,

          4  but these new regulations are even more so.

          5                 There is added to the budget $4

          6  million to fund cost of living adjustments for the

          7  lowest paid preventive and foster care case workers

          8  at our contract agencies, long overdue.

          9                 Institutional schools, while we have

         10  always said it should be in the education budget, it

         11  is in our budget. We support the educational costs

         12  of foster children who require placements in special

         13  foster care facilities and these special schools

         14  because the young people really require a high

         15  degree of service, some are severely dysfunctional,

         16  some are emotionally disturbed. The City's public

         17  education system cannot meet their special needs, so

         18  we have institutional schools to give these young

         19  people as much education as they can absorb.

         20                 Many of these schools are located

         21  outside of New York State, some within the State. In

         22  January of 1999, there were 122 children in these

         23  facilities, we expect these will go up somewhat to

         24  134, we can predict. The budget adds 5.1 million in

         25  Fiscal Year 2000, for a total budget of 15.6
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          2  million. This is a very expensive population to try

          3  to educate, but it is the least we can do.

          4                 In addition to that aspect of the

          5  budget, foster children with special needs, we pay

          6  the maintenance costs of non-foster children placed

          7  in institutional schools by the New York City Board

          8  of Education, and we increased the budget for

          9  institutional schools for that reason as well.

         10                 That population that is placed there

         11  by the Board of Ed has increased 43 percent since

         12  1998. It is about 400 children now. It may increase

         13  by as much as another 170.

         14                 Since I last testified before this

         15  Committee, the negotiations for the Bronx contracts

         16  responding to RFP have been awarded. The

         17  negotiations continue and we expect these contracts

         18  to be in place by June 30th, so we are getting very

         19  close to actually operating of the new contracts

         20  which impose neighborhood-based services. We

         21  released the Citywide RFP on March 24th, those

         22  contracts will be awarded certainly by the end of

         23  this year.

         24                 Day Care and Head Start. The

         25  Executive Budget for the Year 2000 allocates 408.4
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          2  million for day care. This does not differ

          3  substantially from the amount in the preliminary

          4  budget. Let me just focus on recent developments.

          5  Helen Stirling, our Deputy Commissioner for Child

          6  Care and Head Start testified on March 15th to the

          7  Preliminary Budget proposals.

          8                 We expect, as Commissioner Stirling

          9  testified, additional child care funding from the

         10  state. Since we don't have a final state budget yet,

         11  we don't know exactly what that will be but the

         12  Governor's budget proposes 120 million be added to

         13  the Statewide child care block grant, with at least

         14  60 million allocated to New York City, to be shared

         15  by ACS and HRA, in amounts yet to be determined.

         16                 I heard a little bit of the testimony

         17  and questions asked of Jason Turner and his budget

         18  director, we still have to get together on that and

         19  we don't know if we have $120 million yet. But

         20  certainly it is going to allow ACS to expand child

         21  care services for the working poor and our other

         22  high priority client populations, which are

         23  protective and preventive.

         24                 We are working on a plan, we have

         25  gotten pretty far down the road with a plan that
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          2  will help HRA get the day care they need for their

          3  welfare reform programs, at the same time not turn

          4  day care into a WEP support program and continue to

          5  provide day care for the working poor and our other

          6  very high priority clients protective services and

          7  preventive services.

          8                 The 100 percent federally funded Head

          9  Start Program has a budget of 148.7 million for the

         10  current federal fiscal year. That includes almost 2

         11  million, 1.9 to expand Head Start services. On April

         12  26th we released the second RFP for that expansion.

         13  Currently the Head Start Program recontracted with

         14  77 agencies serving 19,327 children at 221 sites. We

         15  think the 1.9 million would allow us to serve about

         16  200 additional children.

         17                 Beginning April 1st, ACS expanded its

         18  fingerprint clearances of all day care and Head

         19  Start workers to include a clearance with the

         20  national crime database in addition to the State CJS

         21  clearance that we are already utilizing. I think

         22  this will enhance our safety review for child care

         23  programs.

         24                 Thank you. I would be happy to take

         25  your questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Once again,

          3  Commissioner, that was very detailed and direct

          4  testimony, that always helps us get through these

          5  hearings.

          6                 I have a couple of questions, I hope

          7  that will fill the gaps, and Council Member Eristoff

          8  probably has some technology questions and we will

          9  be done.

         10                 On the beacon preventive services,

         11  just because we have come back from the Preliminary,

         12  but there are still things that the Council, you

         13  know, may be able to do, do we have an agreement

         14  with the state to cover their match? Is it just we

         15  are feeling confident so we are there?

         16                 I mean, where is it in the continuum?

         17                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: We have, our

         18  OMB has recognized a match because there are

         19  additional funds in the block grant, and also, we

         20  are recognizing a state match -- want to put us on

         21  the hook for something that I think we will maintain

         22  if we have to.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         24                 Then in addition to the 4.3 million

         25  in City funds, which of course draws down that state
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          2  match, there was an additional 1.5 for enhanced

          3  beacon services at some of the schools, it wasn't

          4  the entire beacon network. That has not been

          5  restored, so is it in the nature of as we discussed

          6  at the Prelim, you are not unhappy, you would not be

          7  unhappy to see that kind of addition if the Council

          8  is so motivated?

          9                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: It has not

         10  been restored, you are right. We are very supportive

         11  of beacon, we think it is a terrific program, and so

         12  we are in support of anything that supports the

         13  program.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: In addition,

         15  while we are on this beacon model, if in fact we

         16  hear, anecdotally, of course, about this, more

         17  families in a sense are referred to, for lack of a

         18  better word, want you to get involved with the

         19  beacon, there are services there, there are

         20  opportunities there, and that is a good thing. If

         21  that is true, if that is sort of a trend out of your

         22  shop at all then should we be starting to think

         23  about, let's you know, fight for six more and then

         24  six more after that, I mean just creating more

         25  beacons from the ground up.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Yes, I think

          3  the collaboration with the public school system is a

          4  critical need for child welfare. We are doing lots

          5  of different things with the Board of Education, and

          6  this is just one of them, and I think across the

          7  Board additional initiatives in the public school

          8  system makes all the sense in the world, 1.1 million

          9  kids in public schools that are seen every single

         10  day, there are lots of opportunities.

         11                 Now, we put some money, I think we

         12  put it in, or maybe you put it in, for the MSW

         13  programs, a couple -- almost $3 million I guess, a

         14  couple hundred folks were supposed to be able to

         15  take advantage of that; is it (a) up and running?

         16  And (b) has it been extended to 2000? It was hard

         17  for us to track in the budget.

         18                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Yes, it is

         19  3.4 million that the Mayor put in after the Governor

         20  vetoed MSW scholarship funds in the State budget

         21  last year, and the Mayor made it good.

         22                 It is up and running. We have 200

         23  employees each year since the two-year program, 100

         24  new scholarships, full scholarships, and you know,

         25  some of the tuitions are, almost all of the tuitions
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          2  are 18,000 or 19,000 a year, and we fund those

          3  fully. So a 28,000 a year case worker is getting an

          4  additional tax free $18,000 benefit. A terrific

          5  program, we are really counting on this to make a

          6  difference.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: We couldn't

          8  physically find it in the budget document, so if

          9  someone, not right now, but if you could identify it

         10  for the staff, that would be helpful for their

         11  record.

         12                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Absolutely.

         13                 That is baselined, I should say, so

         14  it is terrific, we can count on it as we go forward.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         16                 Similar question now as to the foster

         17  parent stipend. We put some money in for that period

         18  when it was our own budget, eventually when it was a

         19  combined budget this fiscal year, and there was some

         20  resistance because we didn't have an absolute kind

         21  of state agreement to kick in.

         22                 In terms of the foster care parent

         23  stipend, again, you have committed to it, or the

         24  Mayor committed to it in the Exec. Strong

         25  anticipation that the state will be there? Will our
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          2  money get spent anyway if there is a problem; what

          3  is your sense of that?

          4                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: My sense is

          5  yes to both, that the state will be there and that

          6  we are going to keep the money in no matter what.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          8                 Now, on child care, and then I am

          9  done and we will turn it over to Council Member

         10  Eristoff.

         11                 When ACD operates its child care,

         12  which predominantly are working poor, and I know

         13  there are some folks that you serve that are

         14  involved in the welfare system, is there a component

         15  of ACD that does, and do we spend any money on this,

         16  I don't know the answer, educational outreach? In

         17  other words, talking to parents, explaining their

         18  choices. I mean, I know the end of the question is,

         19  if I ask you, you know, what percentage, it is

         20  roughly 80 percent pick some kind of formal care, I

         21  am just wondering what gets them to that point from

         22  ACD's point of view. Is there something you do that

         23  helps that ratio stay the way it is? And I think it

         24  is a good thing that it happens.

         25                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: We are
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          2  required to give them a choice of the center-based

          3  care or another version.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Center-based

          6  is limited. They end up with a lot of other forms of

          7  care. But that is an affirmative obligation of ACD,

          8  is to inform families of that choice.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Do they get

         10  documents? Do they get like a brochure? I mean, what

         11  actually happens? Do we spend any real money on

         12  that?

         13                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Yes, they do

         14  get a brochure. They do get a writing that explains

         15  that choice to them. I don't know off the top of my

         16  head how much money is spent on that kind of

         17  education of choice. I suppose we could parse it out

         18  in the budget in some way.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: The reason I

         20  am interested in it is, and it is only in a

         21  juxtaposition kind of way, and that is, if you have

         22  a universe of working poor and some folks involved

         23  in the welfare system, and if the overwhelming

         24  majority who are given some outreach choose formal

         25  license, regulated, center-based or family day care,
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          2  and the least number choose informal care, it

          3  continues -- and this is not a question to you, but

          4  I want you to understand and I think you know where

          5  I am going, it continues to boggle my mind that in

          6  the case of OES-operated day care, and I understand

          7  it is not your jurisdiction, it is almost the exact

          8  opposite. Twenty-four thousand before was the number

          9  given of people who choose informal care, and we are

         10  presented with this notion that it is an informed

         11  choice, and I just cannot understand that. So that

         12  is why I am interested in what you do, and I would

         13  argue right, because I don't think they do it right.

         14  And that is just a comment, not really a question,

         15  because it doesn't apply to you per se.

         16                 But while I am on that, is it correct

         17  that your budget at the moment is, relatively

         18  speaking, flat from last year for day care, unless

         19  and until the new state money comes in?

         20                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: It's close.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Or is it down?

         22                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: It is fairly

         23  close. I can find the exact number, but my

         24  recollection is it is very close to where it was,

         25  until we get additional funding, if that is going to
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          2  come.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: It is

          5  virtually the same.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I would just

          7  point out, on behalf of Council Member Eldridge and

          8  myself, because we now in a sense share

          9  jurisdiction, although she takes this on primarily,

         10  that if in fact 60, 80, you know, a million dollars

         11  materializes from our share of state money that

         12  actually ends up in their budget, the great concern

         13  that the trend up until now seems to be increasing

         14  OES budget and a flat ACD budget.

         15                 For what it is worth, from our

         16  perspective, is I think -- and I don't think you

         17  would necessarily disagree but may not be in a

         18  position to comment -- I think there is some greater

         19  need for some balance there. Particularly given not

         20  only who you serve, but the percentage of people

         21  that use this sort of more traditional day care

         22  venues, versus what happens at OES.

         23                 So I just think it is important that

         24  you get your fair share, if there is more state

         25  money. We support that notion. And then on a
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          2  separate day, I mean we will continue to pursue why

          3  it happens that so many thousands upon tens of

          4  thousands of people pick informal care in one group

          5  and not in the other.

          6                 It is dangerous I think, that is

          7  really why we are worried about it. I just wanted to

          8  share that with you.

          9                 Council Member Eristoff has a couple

         10  of questions, a few questions or whatever, and then

         11  we will wrap it up.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 I think I shared some of these

         15  questions with your staff earlier, Commissioner,

         16  saving a little time.

         17                 I am under the understanding that

         18  your agency began a major effort to upgrade its

         19  office automation equipment, both in the central

         20  offices and in the field offices; what is the status

         21  of that? And what are the budget implications?

         22                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: I will give

         23  you some details. Just overall, the really big

         24  program for computerizing child welfare is the

         25  state-driven Connections program, which is at a
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          2  standstill right now, because the state did a study,

          3  there was a panel created, all of us from the

          4  localities testified in effect, gave statements, had

          5  a number of meetings. There is a very useful report

          6  that we think came out of this panel, it seems to

          7  place a lot of emphasis on computerizing child

          8  welfare in New York, since 80 percent of the kids

          9  are down here and we are optimistic that that is

         10  getting back on the right track, but right now it is

         11  still, it is selecting the management group stage to

         12  take over the managing of that project. That is the

         13  big, probably cost $116 million now, computerization

         14  of child welfare.

         15                 But in this budget there is a

         16  computer automation upgrade for what we are doing in

         17  lieu of having the Connections system. We are

         18  building systems that are kind of stop gap because

         19  we absolutely have to go ahead. So that is the

         20  system for attracting the legal, what we call

         21  LAWKIDS, L-A-W-K-I-D-S, the legal processes,

         22  upgrading for Y2K. There is also a data warehouse

         23  and data extract initiative that is really just

         24  giving information from the system so we can make

         25  policy decisions, management information, and there
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          2  is also a portion of that for attracting medical

          3  services.

          4                 There is also some, a good deal of

          5  money being spent on creating the ability to analyze

          6  the data we have. We have tons of data --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Data mining,

          8  is that what you are calling it?

          9                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Exactly. To

         10  create analytic information systems. It really is a

         11  software to manipulate this huge amount of data so

         12  we can use it for policy decisions. We put together

         13  through three groups, rather through a number of

         14  foundations we have three groups working on it,

         15  centered at Chapin Hall at the University of

         16  Chicago, that has done this kind of work across the

         17  country. We have $1.2 million per year for three

         18  years to put that in place, and that has tremendous

         19  promise for being able to monitor the system and

         20  help us monitor what is happening to our kids with

         21  the contract agencies and our own system.

         22                 So, those are the two big

         23  computerized initiatives, initiatives for

         24  computerization that we are doing while we are

         25  hopeful that the big connection system will move
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          2  forward again.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. Could

          4  I ask you to have your staff follow up with more

          5  specifics about the actual budgeted amounts for

          6  these different initiatives?

          7                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Sure.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Before we go

          9  on, I might also add to that list the voice mail,

         10  the initiative that you had underway for a little

         11  while.

         12                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: All of our

         13  installations now have voice mail, with the

         14  exception of one field office in the Bronx at 151st

         15  Street, because there are technical difficulties

         16  there - rewiring, the old outmoded telephone system

         17  that was in place requires more work than we thought

         18  - but that should be up and running by May 15th,

         19  nine days from now.

         20                 That is the $3.2 million in our

         21  budget, there is about a one million annual service

         22  charges and maintenance charges of voice mail, but

         23  that has moved very nicely after a slow start.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay.

         25                 And just finally, you mention this
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          2  data mining analytical initiative, is that what I

          3  saw a notice of back in December? The Mayor's Office

          4  of Contracts had a notice of a 1.25 million dollar

          5  contract for something they call analytic

          6  information systems and research consulting support

          7  services, a bit of a mouthful.

          8                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Yes, it is

          9  1.2 annually.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ERISTOFF: Okay. Well,

         11  then I would appreciate some follow-up on the

         12  specifics.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: You are

         15  welcome.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         17                 Commissioner, just one more, which I

         18  think it was controversial, it may not be as

         19  controversial but I think it is important to just

         20  quickly review this.

         21                 We put $18 million in the budget last

         22  year to support an expansion of child care slots

         23  across the board, Family Day Care Centers,

         24  collaborative projects, vouchers, what have you.

         25  Now, that was when it was our own budget, eventually
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          2  we had an agreed upon budget it became $13 million,

          3  and I think it was a mistake but not necessarily a

          4  fatal mistake, that in fact despite the term and

          5  condition that indicated the money should be used

          6  for expansion, your agency ended up using the $13

          7  million to continue to pay for a pre-existing

          8  voucher program that otherwise would have been

          9  defunded, so one could argue prevented a loss in day

         10  care but didn't really expand. Unless you can argue

         11  it was out and therefore we did expand.

         12                 But the semantic argument aside, it

         13  appears as though the $18 million, or the 13 or 18,

         14  if I need clarification --

         15                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: I have 10.7,

         16  are we talking -- I think we are talking about the

         17  same --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: -- Has been

         19  baselined, and I need to know what we are going to

         20  spend this on?

         21                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: You are right

         22  on the 13.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: I think it was

         24  baselined either at -- the first thing is, either

         25  baselined at 13 or my finance staff thinks it was
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          2  baselined at 18, and then more importantly, once we

          3  clarify that, what are we going to spend it on in

          4  the new fiscal year? That is the final two

          5  questions.

          6                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Well, first

          7  of all it was used to maintain day care services.

          8  There was a $28 million shortfall, and I think all

          9  of that came about because there was some additional

         10  funding that was used to wipe out the day care

         11  waiting list for the very first time, of course in

         12  no time at all it mushroomed again, but we were at a

         13  point where we wiped out the list, and we expected

         14  more money from the state to cover the annualized

         15  cost of wiping out that list. That money wasn't

         16  forthcoming. It was eventually vetoed I think, and

         17  that developed the $28 million shortfall, and so the

         18  $13 million appropriation was used to maintain the

         19  people on day care.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Right.

         21                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: And your

         22  question is what is going to happen next year?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: How much was

         24  baselined, 13 or 18? And what are we going to spend

         25  it on going forward? Are we going to see an
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          2  expansion in that area? Or is it still picking up

          3  other missing monies?

          4                 COMMISSIONER SCOPPETTA: Eighteen

          5  million of it is baslined going forward, and I

          6  suppose expansion or not will depend on what happens

          7  with that $120 million in the Governor's budget, if

          8  it stays in the budget, and how much New York City

          9  gets out of it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         11                 I think there is some concern, you

         12  know, and we will talk to the leadership of the

         13  Council, it is not to suggest that as long as we are

         14  using the money for day care, you know, we are

         15  standing on ceremony, because that is obviously the

         16  first most important thing to do with the money, but

         17  there is some expectation of expansion, and if all

         18  other sources fail, it may be an area that is

         19  important enough to talk to the Administration, talk

         20  to OMB, you know, whether it is mid-year, I don't

         21  want rush things, we didn't even do the budget yet,

         22  but at some point to kind of anticipate some

         23  additional commitment if all other sources fail, so

         24  that this 18 doesn't simply go as important as that

         25  is to maintain, there is some kind of expansion.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  ADMINISTRATION FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES

          2                 I think we prefer to have some other

          3  people help us pay, but if all else fails, you know,

          4  you might want to visit that, the Council might want

          5  to suggest it, that there be some kind of expansion,

          6  and that means, you know, half way through the year,

          7  you know, we mod some money in. Anyway, I think that

          8  may be important.

          9                 Thank you so much for your time, and

         10  I see all of the staff with you, so we appreciate

         11  that, as always. That will conclude these budget

         12  Finance/General Welfare and Women's Issues Committee

         13  Budget Hearings.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 4:05 p.m.)
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